

| Purpose | To provide DoD healthcare providers and public health personnel with step-by-step guidelines to submit RMEs into the Disease Reporting | | | | |
|--------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | System internet (DRSi). | | | | |
| Policy | These guidelines apply to DoD medical personnel in accordance with DoD Directive 6490.02E and applicable state, territory, and host nation laws. Military Health System (MHS) GENESIS is required to submit information in a timely manner for RMEs. | | | | |
| Responsibilities | The military treatment facility's (MTF) Preventive Medicine (PM) department or equivalent (i.e., Public Health Flights) will ensure that RME posters are displayed in any locations in which RMEs are identified (i.e., emergency departments, laboratories, ordering provider workstations, etc.). To request RME posters, send an email to | | | | |
| | dha.apg.pub-health-a.mbx.disease- | | | | |
| | epidemiologyprogram13@health.mil. | | | | |
| | Clinicians will be trained on identifying RMEs and know how to contact the local MTF PM department or equivalent with an emphasis on outbreaks and diseases of public health significance. | | | | |
| | RME reporters will be clearly identified at each installation and will | | | | |
| | maintain regular communication with local hospitals and public health agencies to ensure appropriate tracking and reporting of RMEs per state guidelines. | | | | |
| DHA Strategic Plan | Priority #2: Building a modernized, integrated, and resilient healthcare delivery system. This mechanism of surveillance ensures readiness | | | | |
| | and force health protection through continuous monitoring, early | | | | |
| | detection, prevention, and control of outbreaks. | | | | |
| DRSi Help Desk | COMM: (410) 417-2377 | | | | |
| Contact | DSN: 607-2377 | | | | |
| mormation | enidemiologyprogram13@bealth.mil | | | | |
| Helnful Resources | Armed Forces Medical Events Guidelines and Case Definitions: | | | | |
| | Armed Forces Reportable Medical Events (health.mil) | | | | |
| | DRSi User Guide: Disease Reporting System internet (DRSi) User | | | | |
| | Guide (health.mil) | | | | |
| | DRSi Resources webpage: DRSi Resources - Defense Centers for | | | | |
| | Public Health - Aberdeen | | | | |
| | Communicable Disease Toolkit: Communicable Disease Toolkit - | | | | |
| | Defense Centers for Public Health - Aberdeen | | | | |

What is an RME?

An RME is defined as "an inherent, significant threat to public health and military operations" (Armed Forces Health Surveillance Division [AFHSD], 2022). All RME case definitions and guidelines can be found in the *Armed Forces Medical Events Guidelines and Case Definitions* document (AFHSD, 2022).

What is DRSi?

DRSi is the DoD's official repository for RMEs and is the primary system used by the Defense Health Agency- Public Health to conduct disease and outbreak detection. Furthermore, it is a vital tool in initiating a prompt public health investigation and outbreak response.



What is the Discern Reporting Portal (DRP):

The application "P0630 Discern Reporting Portal" is embedded within MHS GENESIS and allows users to tailor and create reports with information from MHS GENESIS. Utilizing the DRP, users can create lists of labs supporting or confirming RMEs and use the information to report the RMEs in DRSi.

What is MHS GENESIS?

MHS GENESIS is the modern electronic health record for the MHS, providing a single health record for Service Members, veterans, and family members.

What is PowerChart?

The application "P0630 PowerChart" is embedded within MHS GENESIS and is part of the patient's electronic health record. This can be used to verify patient lab results, immunization records, and to determine if a patient was hospitalized.

What is the Electronic Surveillance System for the Early Notification of Community-Based Epidemics (ESSENCE)?

ESSENCE "monitors and provides alerts for unusual increases in the occurrence of health events around the globe" (DHA, 2023). It supports early detection and monitoring of health events through the collection of real-time biosurveillance data from MHS GENESIS, including outpatient health records, pharmacy prescriptions, laboratory results, and radiology reports (DHA, 2023). ESSENCE can be used as an optional cross-check tool and mechanism to assess for outbreaks.



Table of Contents

| STEP 1 DRP: | 4 |
|--|----|
| STEP 2 POWERCHART: | 7 |
| STEP 3 DRSI: | 7 |
| REPORT NEW CASE | 7 |
| EDIT PATIENT DEMOGRAPHICS | 11 |
| UPDATE PRELIMINARY CASES | 12 |
| QUEUING, OPENING, AND EDITING MULTIPLE CASES | 13 |
| FLAGGED CASES | 14 |
| LABS NEEDING REVIEW (LNR) | 15 |
| ENTERING A NEW OUTBREAK | 16 |
| LINKING CASES AND UPLOADING FILES TO EXISTING OUTBREAK REPORTS | 17 |
| UPDATING PRELIMINARY OUTBREAKS | 19 |
| FLAGGED OUTBREAKS | 20 |
| STEP 4 ESSENCE: | 21 |
| REFERENCES: | 21 |



STEP 1 DRP:

Physicians/ordering providers will input lab orders into MHS GENESIS patient charts. Labs will result in MHS GENESIS; the DRP will then pull those results. The DRP should be checked daily for your reporting unit(s).

- 1. Open the MHS GENESIS desktop application.
- 2. Open the "P0630 Discern Reporting Portal" application.



3. Type "Event and Disease Surveillance Report" into the search box at the top, right-hand corner of the screen. Expand the report by selecting on its name, then proceed to select "Run." You can save the report to your favorites by selecting the star icon on the right-hand side of the report listing.

| Reporting Portal | | | Q event and di | isease surveillance report | | × | < |
|---|---|--|--|---|---|---------|---|
| Filters ✓ Source ☑ All | All Reports (1) Report Name - Event and Disease Su | My Favorites (1) arveillance Report | - Categories Infection Control | | | avorite | ^ |
| Public (1/1045) Categories Ali Behavioral Health (0/20) Business Operations Charge S Business Operations Patient A Business Operations Patient A Business Operations Practice I Business Operations Referral I Business Operations Referral I | Description: This report provides a l laboratory tests, and th included in a specifics, communicable disease. | ist of events, generals le result where the event is ubset indicative of Select to expand. | Suggested Report User: No suggested user. Suggested Report Frequency: No suggested frequency. Support Reference Number: Obf0e833-595-4658-89d7- b2615d0d145d | Reporting Application: CCL Alternate name: DOD_RPT_PH_LAB:DBA Save as favorites. | Run Run in Backgrour View Documents | nd S | |
| Care Management (0/15) Recent Reports Event and Disease Surveillance R | | | | | | | Ŧ |



- 4. A DRP prompt window will appear. Do the following:
 - a. Select "Report" at the top of the window.
 - b. For Date Mode, select "Results Verified."
 - c. Input Begin Date Time and End Date Time. NOTE: This will bring up all labs resulted in that specific timeframe. The Begin Date Time should be the day prior to running the report at "00:00," End Date Time should be the day prior to running the report at "23:59."
 - d. Uncheck the boxes for "Pregnancy Results" and "HIV Results" as they are not RMEs.

| 1 | Di | scern Prompt: DO | D_RPT_PH_LAB:DBA | - | • × |
|---------------------------------------|---|--|---|----------------------|-------|
| Rep | iort (| O Documentation | This option will run the report | | |
| * <u>D</u> ate Mod | O Specim | en Collected | esults Verified | | |
| egin Date Ti * <u>E</u> nd Date Ti | ime 01/03/2024 ime 01/03/2024 | ♥ 00:00 ♥ ♥ 23:59 | Communicable Diseases | V Result d Result | s 💽 |
| Agency | ALL | | ~ | | |
| ' <u>F</u> acility(s) | 0001A 0001C 0001H 0003A 0003C 0003H 0003H 0003H | 0001A-AHC Fo 0001C-AHC Fo 0001H-AHC Fo 0003A-AHC Ly 0003A-AHC Ly 0003A-AHC Ly 0003H-AHC Ly 0003M-AHC Ly | «Redstone Assenal «Redstone Assenal «Redstone Assenal aterNovosel sterNovosel sterNovosel sterNovosel | × | × 188 |
| Return to pro | mpts on close of outp node for qualifying tes | Execute | Cancel | | |

- e. Select on the filter icon located to the right of the Facility(s) category.
- f. This action will trigger a prompt window. Enter your facility DMIS ID in the Input box and select "Query." All relevant facilities will be displayed. Select the ">>" icon to transfer all associated facilities to the To Selected field or select the ">" icon to transfer specific facilities to the To Selected field. Then, select "OK" to close the prompt window.





5. Ensure you can see your selected facility(s) in the Facility(s) field of the original prompt window. Select "Execute" in the DRP prompt window.

| | Discern Prompt: DOD_RPT_PH_LAB:DBA |
|------------------------|---|
| • Re | port O Documentation This option will run the report |
| * <u>D</u> ate Mo | de O Specimen Collected Results Verified |
| * <u>B</u> egin Date T | Time 04/02/2024 🗘 🗸 100:00 🗘 Communicable Diseases 🖌 HIV Results 🗌 |
| * <u>E</u> nd Date T | Time 04/02/2024 🗘 V 2359 🗘 Pregnancy Results 🗌 Lead Results V |
| Agency | ALL V |
| * <u>F</u> acility(s) | ♥ 00034 00034-58h Medical Group 000 |
| Return to pro | Execute Cancel |

6. When the report populates select the box in the top left-hand corner of the table, which will select all cells. To copy the selected cells right-click and hover over "Edit" then select "Copy." Then open a new Excel document and paste the cells in the new document.

| 8 | Reporting Portal | | | | | | |
|--|------------------|-------------------|-------------------|--------------|--|--|--|
| Reporting Portal 🦉 Event and Disease Surveillance Report 🗙 | | | | | | | |
| | • 2 4 4 4 | • • | | | | | |
| ACILITY NURSE_UNIT | EVENT_TYPE | EVENT_NAME | EVENT_DESC | RESULT | | | |
| | LAB RESULT | Hep B Surface Ab | Hep B Surface Ab | Reactive | | | |
| 2 | LAB RESULT | Hep B Core Ab | Hep B Core Ab | Reactive | | | |
| 3 | LAB RESULT | Hep B Core Ab IgM | Hep B Core Ab IgM | Non-Reactive | | | |

7. Select all of the cells in the new excel document. Go to the "Data" tab and select "Filter." This will create filters for the columns.

| File Home Insert Page Layout Form | nulas Data Review Vie | w Help Acrobat | | 🖵 Comments 🛛 🖻 Share |
|---|--|---|--|----------------------|
| $ \begin{array}{c c} & & \\ & & \\ & & \\ Paste \\ & & \\ $ | = = = ≫ - = = = = = = = = = = = . \$ | v % ♥ 50 00 Conditional Formatian Formatting v Table v Sty | $\begin{array}{c c} & \fbox{Insert} & & \vspace{-1mu} \\ $ | Sensitivity Add-ins |
| Clipboard 🖾 Font 🖼 | Alignment 🖬 | Number 🖬 Styles | Cells Editing | Sensitivity Add-ins |
| File Home Insert Page Layout Form | ulas Data Review View | v Help Accobat | | 다 Comments 년 Share |
| Get From Text/CSV Recent Sources | Refresh | 2↓ ZA z↓ Sort Filter Zeapply Text to | 部 문 백 Group (What-ff Forecast) 知道 Ungroup | • +10 • • 10 |
| Data V Harrow laber kange | All Y L쿱 Edit Links | Advanced Columns | Analysis V Sheet Emotoria | |

- 8. Select the down arrow for the NORMALCY column and only select "ABN," "CRIT," and "(Blanks)." This will show the possible RMEs based upon the laboratory results or diagnosis.
- Select the down arrow for the RESULTS column and de-select "NEGATIVE," "NEG," "NON-REACTIVE," "TNP," "NOT DETECTED," "INVALID," and "NONE SEEN." This will ensure that only positive results will show.
- Select the down arrow for the EVENT_DESC column and de-select any non-RMEs. NOTE: Consult the current <u>Armed Forces Reportable Medical Events Guidelines and Case</u> <u>Definitions</u> document for required RME information.

| | A | В | С | D | F | T | G |
|---|-----------|------------|-------------|------------------|------------------|----------|------------|
| 1 | FACILIT - | NURSE_UN 🔻 | EVENT_TYP - | EVENT_NAME | EVENT DESC | RESULT | NORMALCY - |
| 2 | | | LAB RESULT | Hep B Surface Ab | Hep B Surface Ab | Reactive | ABN |
| 3 | | | LAB RESULT | Hep B Core Ab | Hep B Core Ab | Reactive | ABN |



STEP 2 PowerChart:

- 1. Open the MHS GENESIS desktop application.
- 2. Open the application "P0630 PowerChart."



- 3. Select "Patient" at the top of the screen and then select "Search."
- 4. Search for the patient using their DODID. NOTE: The DODID can be pulled from the DRP report under the "EDIPI" column.
- 5. A list of patient encounters will be populated, select the encounter you are looking to verify based upon the "Event_DT_TM" column in the DRP report.
- 6. Each MTF may record and verify RMEs differently. Some of the options you may use to verify RMEs are listed below.
 - a. Go to the "Summary" tab at the top of the patient chart and review the clinical notes to verify if the patient was hospitalized. These notes may also include signs and symptoms of disease. NOTE: There may not be any clinical notes listed under this tab.
 - b. On the left-hand menu select "Documentation." Scroll to the corresponding date for the encounter you are trying to verify and identify any documentation to confirm hospitalization and/or signs and symptoms. NOTE: Some examples of documents that may be used for this verification include those labeled as "Discharge," "Intake," or "Clinical Note." This is not a comprehensive list.
 - c. On the left-hand menu select the "Immunization" tab to verify the patient's immunizations.
 - d. On the left-hand menu select "Results Review" and then select the "Labs-Recent" tab to verify the lab results if necessary.

STEP 3 DRSi:

NOTE: For first time DRSi users, refer to page 8 of the <u>DRSi User Guide</u> for registration instructions.

- 1. Login to DRSi.
- 2. Report new case

a. Go to the "Cases" module on the left side navigation bar and select "Enter New Case."

| ^ | Cases 473 | 37 | Case Summary | / | | | | | | ^ | Cases | 4729 |
|---|--|----|--------------|--------------|------------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------|---|-----|---|----------------------------------|------|
| 0 | Summary Enter New Case | | Flagged Case | es | | | | 2792 | 1.5 | | Summary | |
| • | Ragged Cases 279 | 3 | Case ID | Patient Name | Medical Event | First Report Date | Patient | Case > | l t | 0 | Summary | |
| | Update Preliminary Cases 28 Labs Needing Review 165 | 3 | | | Amebiasis | 03/15/2024 | DODID | Classification / Regional Review Status | I. | U | Enter New Case | |
| | Search Cases | | | | | | | Not a Case / No Flag | | | Flagged Cases | 2788 |
| | Print Health Department Records | 10 | Case ID | Patient Name | Medical Event Hepatitis B | First Report Date 03/15/2024 | Patient DODID | Case > Classification / Regional Review | | | Update Preliminary Cases | 290 |
| | STI Risk Surveys | 30 | | | | | | Status Confirmed / No Flag | | д | Labs Needing Review | 1651 |
| | TB Contact Investigation | 20 | Case ID | Patient Name | Medical Event | First Report Date 03/14/2024 | Patient | Case > Classification / | | Q | Search Cases | |
| | Data & Analysis | | | | | | | Regional Review Status Confirmed / No | | Д | Print Health Department Percende | |
| | 14:07 Reset Timeout | | | | | | | Flag | | 8 | Print Health Department Records | |



- i. Enter the DODID associated with the patient or sponsor of the new case and select the "Find Patient by DODID" icon.
 - If the patient already has a registered profile: The patient's information and their linked family members will be displayed. Scroll through the list and find the correct patient you are looking for and select "Select Patient." Once complete, skip to "<u>Confirm patient demographics</u>"
 - If the patient does NOT have a DRSi profile: A message will say "No patient was found for this search. Do you want to register a new Sponsor or a new Family Member?" with the options "Register Sponsor" or "Register Family Member."
 - a. <u>To register a new sponsor</u>:
 - i. Select "Register Sponsor."
 - ii. Enter all of the sponsor information "DODID, sponsor name, date of birth (DOB), race, gender, rank, duty status, service branch, duty station, and any contact information." **The DODID** <u>cannot</u> be changed after this step.
 - 1. Some of this information can be pulled from the DRP including DODID, race, DOB, duty status, and service branch. NOTE: DODID will be under the "EDIPI" column in the DRP report.
 - iii. Once all information is entered correctly select "Submit and Continue." A prompt window will appear, select "Accept."
 - b. To register a new family member (dependents only):
 - i. Select "Register Family Member."
 - ii. Select "Find Sponsor" and enter the sponsor's DODID. Verify that the sponsor is correct and select "Add Family Member." If sponsor is not registered skip to "<u>To register a new family member AND new</u> <u>sponsor</u>"
 - iii. Enter the sponsors and dependent's DODID, full name, gender, DOB, address, phone number, and email. Also include the sponsor's rank, duty status, and service branch. The DODID <u>cannot</u> be changed after this step.
 - iv. Once all information is entered correctly, select "Submit and Continue." A prompt window will appear select "Accept."
 - c. To register a new family member AND new sponsor:
 - i. Select "Register Family Member."
 - ii. Enter DODID of the sponsor, if sponsor is not found select "Register Family Member with New Sponsor."
 - iii. Enter the sponsor's <u>and</u> dependent's DODID, full name, gender, DOB, address, phone number, and email. Also include the sponsor's rank, duty status, and service branch. The DODID <u>cannot</u> be changed after this step.
 - iv. Once all information is entered correctly select "Submit and Continue." A Prompt window will appear, select "Accept."
- b. Confirm patient demographics. NOTE: Skip to "<u>If demographic information does not need to be updated</u>" if new patient profile was just created.
 - i. Review patient demographics to ensure that all patient information is correct. NOTE: All demographic edits must be made before a new case report is made.



- 1. The following patient demographic information can be edited for existing patient profiles: name, DOB, gender, race, beneficiary category, service branch, duty status, rank, duty station.
- 2. The DODID cannot be edited for existing patient profiles. If these need to be updated refer to the "DRSi User Guide.
- ii. If demographic information needs to be updated:
 - 1. Select "Edit."

| Confirm Patient D | Confirm Patient Demographics | | | | | | |
|--|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Confirm: Please confirm the selected patient's demographics are correct before starting the case. Most of these details cannot be edited once the case has been started. | | | | | | | |
| Full Name Spider F. Man | Patient Status Active Duty | | | | | | |
| Sponsor DODID | Patient DODID | | | | | | |
| DOB 12/01/1990 | Gender Male | Race African American | Beneficiary Category Active Duty Service Member | | | | |
| Service Branch Army | Sponsor Patient Status Active Duty | Rank E4 | Duty Station Unknown Edit Confirm | | | | |

2. Once all edits have been made select, "Submit and Continue" at the top-right of the screen.

| Edit Sponsor for Case | | | | Close Submit and Continue |
|--|------------------|----------------------|--------|---|
| Demographics | | | | * Required for reporting Case |
| Sponsor DODID ≭ | | | | |
| First Name * | MI Last Name * | د | | |
| Race * | Date of Birth * | Gender * | | |
| Allican American | 12/01/1330 | Male Female | | |
| Service Information | | | | * Required for reporting Case |
| Rank * Patient Status * E4 • Active Duty • | Service Branch * | Duty Station Unknown | Select | Beneficiary Category Active Duty Service Member |



- iii. If demographic information does not need to be updated:
 - 1. Select "Confirm

| Confirm Patient D | Demographics | | | |
|---|--|---|------------------------------|----------------------------|
| Confirm: Please confirm the started. | e selected patient's demographics are correct be | fore starting the case. Most of these d | etails cannot be edited once | the case has been |
| Full Name Spider F. Man | Patient Status Active Duty | | | |
| Sponsor DODID | Patient DODID | | | |
| DOB 12/01/1990 | Gender Male | Race African American | Beneficiary Active Duty S | Category Service Member |
| Service Branch Army | Sponsor Patient Status Active Duty | Rank E4 | Duty Station Unknown | |
| | | | Edit | Confirm |

- 2. A list of recently reported cases will be displayed for the patient. Confirm that the case you want to report has not already been reported. NOTE: If the patent has already been reported for the RME, contact the <u>DRSi Help Desk</u>.
- c. Create the MER
 - i. Select from the "Medical Event" drop-down list and select the RME you are reporting.
 - Select the "Date of Onset" from the calendar icon. NOTE: The date of onset is when the patient first began having symptoms. If this is not applicable or it is unknown, then enter the date of the positive laboratory test or the date of diagnosis for the patient. The date cannot be changed after report is submitted.
 - iii. Select "Set Event Details."

| Patient | | | |
|-----------------------------------|--------------------------------------|--------------------------|----------------------------|
| Full Name Spider F. Man | Patient DODID | FMP 20 - Spons | or |
| Create Medical Event | | | |
| Medical Event (i) | Date of Onset (mm/dd/yyyy) | (ii) = | (iii) Set Event Details |

- The system will review existing cases to check for any duplicate reports. If a duplicate report is identified, review, and if needed contact the <u>DRSi Help</u> <u>Desk</u>.
- NOTE: To determine if RMEs should be reported more than once within 30 days of initial report review the <u>Armed Forces Reportable Medical Events</u> <u>Guidelines and Case Definitions</u> for guidance. If you are still unsure, contact your <u>DRSi Help Desk</u>.
- iv. Enter all information available in the MER. Complete as much as possible under the Medical Event, Laboratory Tests, Event Related Questions, and Comments section.



1. If you are still gathering information about a case, set the Case Status to "Preliminary." This will ensure that the case is available to update later. If report is finished, set the Case Status to "Final."

| Medical Event | | | | |
|--|-------------------------------------|---|-------------------------------|--------------|
| Medical Event Amebiasis | | | | |
| Date of Onset | Date of Diagnosis | | Date of Clinic Visit | |
| 02/01/2024 | | | | |
| Reporting Unit | | | | |
| d7777 - testing, testing, testing | | | | |
| Case Classification | Case Status | | Date of Report | |
| Case Classification | ▼ Case Status | * | 02/05/2024 | |
| Case Classification Status should be Events Guidelines, | Preliminary classified s : Final | | e current Armed Forces Report | able Medical |

2. After reviewing all information for accuracy, select "Submit."

3. Edit Patient Demographics

- a. Go to the "Cases" module and select "Enter New Case."
- b. Search for patient using their DODID.
- c. Once you find the correct patient, select "Edit" in the top right-hand corner.

| Active Duty: | | | Add Family Member Edit |
|----------------|------------------------|------------------|----------------------------|
| Full Name | Patient Status | | |
| Spider F. Man | Active Duty | | |
| Sponsor DODID | Patient DODID | | |
| DOB | Gender | Race | Beneficiary Category |
| 12/01/1990 | Male | African American | Active Duty Service Member |
| Service Branch | Sponsor Patient Status | Rank | Duty Station |
| Army | Active Duty | E4 | Unknown |
| | | | Show Cases Select Patient |
| | | | |

- d. Update any demographic information. Once that is completed select "Submit and Continue."
- e. The system will bring you to the "Create Medical Event" page, if no case needs to be reported for that patient, then select the "Summary" tab in the "Cases" module to end the process. If case does need to be reported refer back to "<u>Create the MER</u>."



4. Update Preliminary Cases

Cases should only be marked as "Preliminary" if additional information is still being gathered about the case. Most cases are expected to be updated to "Final" within 1 week of the first report date; some cases may take longer to investigate.

a. In the "Case Module" on the left-hand navigation bar select "Update Preliminary Cases."

| ^ | Cases | 4734 |
|---|---------------------------------|------|
| 0 | Summary | |
| 0 | Enter New Case | |
| | Flagged Cases | 2791 |
| ø | Update Preliminary Cases | 289 |
| Д | Labs Needing Review | 1654 |
| ۹ | Search Cases | |
| ₽ | Print Health Department Records | |

- b. If the case does not appear on the main screen, apply search criteria for the desired preliminary case and select "Search." If you want to apply new search criteria, select the "X" to the right of the "Search" icon before entering the new criteria. You can sort the cases by selecting the column titles in the table. If no criteria is applied, then the default sorting will be by most recent MER Case ID.
- c. Open the preliminary case by selecting the "View" icon. NOTE: If no cases are shown that means there are no active preliminary cases in the unit that the reporter has access to.

| Sc | roll All (37 | 2) Results | | | | Dow | nload | | |
|-------|--------------|------------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------------|--|------------------|---------------------------|------------------------|--------------|
| Queue | View | Case ID | Patient Status ‡ | Patient DODID 🗢 🛛 Name 🗧 | € Medical Event ≑ | Date of Onset \$ | First Report Date ≑ | Case Classification | Curr Unit |
| | View | i | Family Member (Spouse) | | Chlamydia trachomatis infection | | | Confirmed | |
| | View | 1 | Active Duty | | Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP) against Rabies | | | Confirmed | |
| | View | | Active Duty | | Chlamydia trachomatis infection | | | Confirmed | |
| | View | ; | Family Member (Child) | | Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP) against Rabies | | | Confirmed | |
| | View | | Family Member (Child) | | Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP) against Rabies | | | Confirmed | |
| | View | 1 | Retired | | Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP) against Rabies | | | Confirmed | |

- d. Update and edit the case as needed.
 - i. If all case information has been gathered and entered, change the "Case Status" to "Final." When finished select "Submit." NOTE: Once a case has been changed to "Final" it will be moved from the "Preliminary Cases" module.



5. Queuing, Opening, and Editing Multiple Cases

- a. Queueing and Opening Cases:
 - i. If you need to review multiple cases at one time, select the check box under the "Queue" for each desired case.
 - ii. Once all cases are selected, select the "Scroll Selected (#) in Queue" at the top of the table to view all the MERs. If you want to select and review all MERs, select "Scroll All Results" at the top of the table.

| 🌑 Sc | roll All (37 | 72) Results | Scroll Sel | ected (4) in C | Queue 🔊 Cle | ear Queue | | | Dow | nload |
|-------|--------------|--------------|---------------------------|---------------------|-------------|--|-----------------|---------------------------|------------------------|---------------|
| Queue | View | Case ID 🗸 | Patient Status ≑ | Patient DODID \$ | Name \$ | Medical Event 🗘 | Date of Onset 🖨 | First Report Date ≑ | Case Classification | Curro Unit |
| V | View | | Family Member (Spouse) | | | Chlamydia trachomatis infection | | | Confirmed | |
| | View | | Active Duty | | | Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP) against Rabies | | | Confirmed | |
| | View | | Active Duty | | | Chlamydia trachomatis infection | | | Confirmed | |
| 2 | View | | Family Member (Child) | | | Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP) against Rabies | | | Confirmed | |
| | View | | Family Member (Child) | | | Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP) against Rabies | | | Confirmed | |
| | View | | Retired | | | Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP) against Rabies | | | Confirmed | |

- b. Editing Cases in a Queue:
 - i. Apply changes to the specific cases as needed.
 - ii. Update the case status to "Final" if all necessary information has been collected and entered.
 - iii. Select "Submit" once case is updated.
 - iv. Use the queue navigation at the bottom of the screen to move through the selected cases. Either use the "Next" icon to move to the next listed case or select the drop-down menu and select the specific case you would like to review next.
 - v. Select "Close Queue" when you are finished editing the cases.

| Case 1 of 4 | Close Queue | « Previous | - Syphilis • | Next » |
|-------------|-------------|-------------------|-------------------------|--------|
| | | | | |



6. Flagged Cases

If a regional reviewer flags a case submitted by your reporting unit, it will now appear in the "Flagged Cases" module with notes regarding what edits need to be made. As a reporter you should be checking the "Flagged Cases" module periodically. If no cases are shown, then that means that all case questions/comments have been addressed.

a. In the "Case Module" on the left-hand navigation bar select "Flagged Cases."



- b. If the case does not appear on the main screen, apply search criteria for the desired preliminary case and select "Search." If you want to apply new search criteria, select the "X" to the right of the "Search" icon before entering the new criteria. You can sort the cases by selecting the column titles in the table. If no criteria is applied, then the default sorting will be by most recent MER case ID.
- c. Open the flagged case by selecting the "View" icon.
- d. Review the comments/questions from regional reviewer and apply any edits. NOTE: The contact information for the reviewer will be included if any further clarification is needed before edits can be made. Questions can be answered directly in the "Comments" box.
- e. Select "Submit" and the case will be sent back to reviewer. Reviewer will either close the case or flag it again if there are any more comments/questions. Refer back to "Step "<u>Queuing, Opening, and Editing Multiple Cases</u>" for information on how to Queue, Open, and Edit multiple flagged cases.



7. Labs Needing Review (LNR)

As a reporter you should review the "Labs Needing Review" list every day to either report the case if applicable or remove the case if it does not meet the case definition, it was incorrectly uploaded into the LNR, or was already reported.

a. In the "Case Module" on the left-hand navigation bar select "Labs Needing Review."



- b. If the case does not appear on the main screen, apply search criteria for the wanted labs and select "Search." If you want to apply new search criteria, select the "X" to the right of the "Search" icon before entering the new criteria. If no search criteria, just select "Search." You can sort the cases by selecting the column titles in the table. NOTE: If a match is found between the RME and DODID the lab will be uploaded into the "Reported" portion of the LNR. If a match is not found, then the lab is not reported and will appear in the "Not Reported" list in the LNR.
 - i. Under the "Case Finding Classification" a case will be identified as either "Questionable" or "Highly Likely." "Questionable" cases are cases where the lab may or may not be reportable. "Highly Likely" cases are cases where a lab is very likely to be reportable. NOTE: You must review <u>every</u> lab before reporting as the results may suggest a case but do not guarantee a case. Even if a case is a "Highly Likely" it could still be for an incorrect patient or repeat results. Review all lab results before reporting a case.
- c. If a lab result is reportable select the "Report Case" icon under the "Report/View Case" column.
 - i. <u>If the patient is not registered in DRSi:</u> The system will walk you through how to register a new patient. The RME and onset date must be entered at the top of the page. NOTE: The onset date will default to the lab certification date however, this can be edited if necessary.



ii. <u>If the patient has already been registered in DRSi</u>: Edit the onset date, if necessary.

| Medical Event | | | | | Reporti | ng Units | | | | |
|-------------------------|--------------|----------------------|---------------------|-----------------|-------------|----------------|------------------------|--------------------|-------------------------------|---------|
| Medical Event | | | | * | All | | | | | |
| Public Health Classif | ication | | | | Reporte | ed in DRSi | | | | |
| Public Health Classi | fication | | | * | Any | Reported | Not Reported | | | |
| Date Filter Mode | | I | Days From Im | port (90 d | ay limit) | | | | | |
| Days from Today | Date Range | | 90 | | | | | Sea | rch | × |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Report/View Case Del | ete DODID \$ | Patient Status ‡ | Patient DODID \$ | Medica Event | l , Requ | esting Facilit | Date of y ≎ Event ≎ | Date Imported ≑ | Case Finding Classificatio | a n≑ |
| Report Case D | elete | N/A | | Varicella | | | | | Questionable | |
| Report Case D | elete | Sponsor (Unknown) | | Varicella | 1 | | | | Questionable | |
| Report Case D | elete | Sponsor (Unknown) | | Varicella | 1 | | | | Questionable | |
| Report Case D | elete | N/A | | Varicella | | | | | Questionable | |
| Report Case D | elete | N/A | | Varicella | 1 | | | | Questionable | |
| Report Case D | elete | Sponsor (Unknown) | | Varicella | I | | | | Questionable | |

- d. Fill out the case report with all available information. Once all information is entered, select "Submit."
- e. To get back to the LNR, select the "Close" icon at the top of the case report page.
 - i. The case that was just reported will no longer show up in the "Not Reported" list, instead it will appear for 90 days in the "Reported" list.
 - ii. NOTE: Some cases may need to be deleted from the LNR list. Reasonable grounds to remove a case include: the case was already reported to DRSi, the case had a positive lab but does not meet the case definition for that RME per the <u>Armed Forces Reportable Medical Events Guidelines and Case Definitions</u>, or the lab record was incorrectly uploaded into the LNR list. You may be asked to provide an explanation as to why a case was deleted.

8. Entering a New Outbreak

a. In the "Outbreak Module" on the left-hand navigation bar select "Enter New Outbreak."

| • | Cases | 4724 | С | ase Summa | iry | | | | | | |
|------|-------------------------------|------|---|------------|--------------|-------------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------|-------------------------------------|---|-----------------------------|
| | | 138 | | | | | | | | | |
| 0 | Summary | | | Flagged Ca | ises | | | | 2782 | ^ | Outbreaks |
| 0 | Enter New Outbreak | | | Case ID | Patient Name | Medical Event | First Report Date | Patient | Case > | | |
| | Flagged Outbreaks | 100 | | | | Lead Poisoning (Pediatric) | 03/15/2024 | DODID | Classification / Regional Review | e | Summary |
| * | Update Preliminary Outbreaks | 38 | | | | | | | Status Confirmed / No | | Enter New Outbreak |
| ٦ | Search Outbreaks | | | | | | | | Flag | | Enter New Outbreak |
| ~ | STI Risk Surveys | 533 | | Case ID | Patient Name | Medical Event Syphilis | First Report Date 03/15/2024 | Patient DODID | Case > Classification / | | Flagged Outbreaks |
| ~ | TB Contact Investigation | 27 | | | | | | | Regional Review Status | | |
| ~ | | | | | | | | | Confirmed / No Flag | | Update Preliminary Outbreak |
| | erb SSN, DODID, er anether ID | | | Case ID | Patient Name | Medical Event | First Report Date | Patient | Case > | Q | Search Outbreaks |
| | | ~ | | | | campyionacterioais | 03/13/2024 | DODID | Regional Review | | |
| PREV | 13:42 Reset Timeout | | | | | | | | Confirmed / No | | |

The mention of any non-federal entity and/or its products is for informational purposes only, and is not to be construed or interpreted, in any manner, as federal endorsement of that non-federal entity or its products.

33



- b. Complete as much of the report as possible under the "Basic Information," "Clinical and Epidemiological Information," "Exposure and Transmission," "Investigation and Control Methods," and "Additional Information."
 - i. Under "Report Status" select "Preliminary."

| Reporting Unit | | | | | |
|---------------------------------|---------|---|-------|-------|---|
| d7777 - testing, testing, testi | ng | | | | |
| Location of Outbreak | | | C'tr. | State | |
| Command | Country | | City | State | |
| Command Command | Country | * | City | State | * |
| Command Command | Country | * | City | State | |

NOTE: Keep outbreak status as "Preliminary" until all relevant details have been completed and the investigation is finished. Once the status is update to "Final" it will be sent for review by the regional reviewers.

c. Select "Submit." After submitting the outbreak, users will have the ability to upload documents and link cases associated with the outbreak.

9. Linking Cases and Uploading Files to Existing Outbreak Reports

- a. After submitting a new outbreak, scroll to the bottom of the outbreak report to find the "Linked Cases" and "Upload Files" sections.
- b. Linking Cases:
 - i. Select the "Link to Case" icon on the right.

| 🕜 Li | nked (| Cases | | | | | | | | Link t | to Case |
|---------------|--------|--------------|---------------------|--------------------|--------|--------------------|---------------------|------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------------|---------|
| Quick View | Unlink | Case ID ≑ | Patient Status ‡ | Patient DODID ≑ | Name ‡ | Medical Event ‡ | Date of Onset \$ | First Report Date ≑ | Case Classification | Current Reporting Unit ‡ | POC \$ |
| | | | | | | No linked | cases. | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | Total Re | ecords: |
| | | | | | | | | | | | 0 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | ploade | ed File | ès | | | | | | | | |
| Ē | Browse | | File Name | | | | | | | | |
| | | | File Descriptio | 'n | | | | | | 1. Upload | ł |

- ii. To search for specific individuals, enter the DODID or enter a list of Case IDs (enter a list by separating Case IDs by a comma and space). You can also search based on the Medical Event by specifying date ranges to find multiple case. Select "Search" once parameters are entered. If you want to apply new search parameters, select the "X" to the right of the "Search" icon before entering the new parameters.
- iii. A line list will be displayed. Select "Quick View" to see a preview of the MER.



iv. Select "Link Case" to link relevant cases to the outbreak. NOTE: After linking a case, it will no longer appear in the list. The linked case will appear in the outbreak report and in the associated MER. Cases can be unlinked anytime by selecting "Unlink" in the outbreak report or in the MER.

| ink Case | Quick View |
|-----------|------------|
| Link Case | Quick View |

- c. Uploading Files:
 - i. Select "Browse" and a file explorer will open.
 - ii. Find the file you want to attach to the case and select "Open."
 - iii. The file will populate in the "Uploaded Files" section.
 - iv. Add a File Description then select "Upload" on the right. NOTE: Uploaded files can be downloaded or deleted at any time. It is not required to upload any files for an outbreak report.

| Quick View | Unlink | Case ID ≑ | Patient Status ≑ | Patient DODID \$ | Name ‡ | Medical Event ≑ | Date of Onset \$ | First Report Date ≑ | Case Classification | Current Reporting Unit ‡ | POC 🕸 |
|---------------|------------------|--------------|------------------------|---------------------|--------|--------------------|---------------------|------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------------|--------|
| | | | | | | No linked | cases. | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | Total | Record |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| L Up | ploade | ed File | es | | | | | | | | |
| L Ur | ploade Browse | ed File | ES File Name | | | | | | | | |



10. Updating Preliminary Outbreaks

NOTE: Outbreaks marked as "Preliminary" inform reviewers that the outbreak investigation is ongoing. The "Preliminary" status allows reporting units to continue to make updates. Outbreaks are expected to spend a significant amount of time under "Preliminary" status.

a. In the "Outbreaks" module on the left-hand navigation bar select "Update Preliminary Outbreaks."



- b. If the outbreak does not appear on the main screen, apply search criteria for the wanted outbreak and select "Search." If you want to apply new search criteria, select the "X" to the right of the "Search" icon before entering the new criteria. You can sort the cases by selecting the column titles in the table. If no criteria is applied, then the default sorting will be by most recent Outbreak ID.
- c. Open the outbreak report by selecting the "View" icon. NOTE: If no reports are shown, then that means there are no active preliminary outbreaks in the unit that the reporter has access to.

| Queue | View | Outbreak ID ↓ | Reporting Unit ≑ | Report Status ≑ | Outbreak Type ≑ | Date of Report ≑ | Date of Initial Report ≑ |
|-------|------|-----------------------------|------------------|--------------------|--------------------|---------------------|-----------------------------|
| o | View | | | Preliminary | Other, specify | 02/05/2024 | 02/02/2024 |
| | View | | | Preliminary | Gastrointestinal | 02/02/2024 | 02/02/2024 |
| | View | | | Preliminary | Gastrointestinal | 12/15/2023 | 12/15/2023 |
| | View | | | Preliminary | Respiratory | 12/07/2023 | 12/07/2023 |
| | View | | | Preliminary | Respiratory | 10/12/2023 | 10/10/2023 |
| | View | | 1993) 4 2002 | Preliminary | Respiratory | 07/26/2023 | 07/26/2023 |



- d. Update and edit the outbreak as needed.
 - i. If all the information for the outbreak has been gathered and entered, change the "Report Status" to "Final." When the outbreak has been updated with all new relevant information select "Submit." NOTE: Once a report has been changed to "Final" it will be moved from the "Preliminary Outbreaks" module.

| version 2 Basic Information | | | | | |
|-----------------------------------|--------------------------|---|-------------------|-------|---|
| Reporting Unit | | | | | |
| d7777 - testing, testing, testing | | | | | |
| Location of Outbreak Command | Country | | City | State | |
| | Country | * | | | * |
| Date first case became ill, D | ate last case became ill | | Report Status | | |
| | to End (mm/dd/yy | | Preliminary Final | | |
| | | | | | |

11. Flagged Outbreaks

NOTE: If a regional reviewer flags an outbreak submitted by your reporting unit, it will appear in the "Flagged Outbreaks" tab with notes regarding what edits need to be made.

a. In the "Outbreaks" module on the left-hand navigation bar select "Flagged Outbreaks."



- b. If the flagged outbreak does not appear on the main screen, apply search criteria for the wanted flagged outbreak and select "Search." If you want to apply new search criteria, select the "X" to the right of the "Search" icon before entering the new criteria. You can sort the report by selecting the column titles in the table. If no criteria are applied, then the default sorting will be by most recent Outbreak ID.
- c. Open the flagged case by selecting the "View" icon.
- d. Review the comments/questions from the regional reviewer and apply any edits. NOTE: The contact information for the reviewer will be included if any further clarification is needed before edits can be made. Questions can be answered directly in the "Comments" box.
- e. Select "Submit" and the case will be sent back to the reviewer. NOTE: The reviewer will either mark the report as "Approved" or flag it again if there are any more comments/questions.

The mention of any non-federal entity and/or its products is for informational purposes only, and is not to be construed or interpreted, in any manner, as federal endorsement of that non-federal entity or its products.



STEP 4 ESSENCE:

- The "MyEssence" tab at the top toolbar of the home screen will take you to the dashboard. For new users, this will be blank. You can add pre-existing queries by selecting "Library" and choosing the queries that are publicly shared or you can create your own. To start your dashboard, the recommended queries to select from the "Library" tab are: My COVID, RSV, Default RME, Default Syndromes by ICD.
 - a. ESSENCE training materials and registration instructions can be found on the milSuite page at this link: https://www.milsuite.mil/book/groups/essence/pages/training.
- 2. Use ESSENCE as a tool to check for disease trends within your installation to track how disease counts have increased, decreased, or stayed constant over a period of time (ex: Epidemic Curve: a histogram that displays the number of new cases of disease that are occurring over time. An Epidemic Curve can show the timeline and course of an outbreak).

References:

- Air Force Manual 8-105, Surveillance, Prevention, and Control of Diseases and Conditions of Public Health or Military Significance, 26 June 2020.
- Armed Forces Reportable Medical Events Guidelines and Case Definitions, AFHSD (2022) Retrieved from: <u>https://health.mil/Reference-Center/Publications/2022/11/01/Armed-Forces-Reportable-Medical-Events-Guidelines</u>.
- Army Regulation 40-5, *Preventive Medicine*, 12 May 2020.
- Coast Guard Medical Manual Commandant Instruction Manuals 6000.7, *Preventive Medicine* and Population Health, 22 Sep 2022.
- Defense Health Agency (DHA). *Fact Sheet: ESSENCE* (2018). Retrieved from: <u>https://www.health.mil/-/media/Files/MHS/Fact-Sheet-Files/ESSENCE-</u> Factsheet Rev11.ashx
- Department of Army Pamphlet 40-11, Army Public Health Program, 18 May 2020.
- DoDD 6490.02E, Comprehensive Health Surveillance, 28 Aug 2017.
- Department of Defense Instruction 6490.03, Deployment Health, 19 Jun 2019.

Joint Publication 4-02, *Doctrine for Health Service Support for Joint Operations*, 29 AUG 2023 Navy Manual of the Medical Department p-117 articles 2-17 and 2-19, 21 Apr 2023.

- Office of the Chairman, the Joint Chiefs of Staff Memorandum Military Committee Memorandum 0028-07, *Procedures for Deployment Health Surveillance*, 2 Nov 2007.
- The Navy Bureau of Medicine and Surgery INST 6220.12 series, *Medical Surveillance and Medical Event Reporting*, 27 Sep 2011.

U.S Air Force School of Aerospace Medicine, the Defense Centers for Public Health – Aberdeen, and the Navy and Marine Corps Public Health Center, *Disease Reporting System internet (DRSi) User Guide*, March 2023. Retrieved from <u>https://drsi.health.mil/ADRSi/Content/PDF/DRSi%20User%20Guide_15MAR2023.pdf</u>